
Agenda, Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2021 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, all meetings of the Board will be conducted via 
teleconference until further notice, in accordance with CA AB 361. 

JOIN BY COMPUTER: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/173430789 
DIAL-IN (US TOLL-FREE): 1 866 899 4679 
ACCESS CODE: 173-430-789 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-2114.  

(Govt. Code Section 94594.1 and 94594.2 (a)) 

December 21, 2021 at 6:00 pm. 
1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call

3. Approval of the minutes: November 16, 2021, Regular Meeting

4. Public comment for items not appearing on the agenda

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item 
of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, provided that no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2.    
Please Note:  If you have comments on a specific agenda item(s), please fill out a comment card 
and return it to the Board Secretary. The Board President will call on you for your comments at 
the appropriate time, either before or during the Board’s consideration of that item. 

Closed Session Agenda - Adjourn to Closed Session (6:10 pm):  It is the intention of the Board of 
Directors to meet in Closed Session to consider the following items: 

5. Closed Session Items
a) The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters or litigation,

pursuant to attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code Section 54957,
54956.8, & 54956.9 and 54957.

• State Case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Superior Court, Case # CPF-14-513875
• Meiners Oaks Water District vs. Moll, Ostling and Ojai Vista Farms 56-2018-00515474-

CU-OR-VTA/

Page 1 of 35

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/173430789
tel:+18668994679,,173430789


Agenda, Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2021 

Regular Agenda (***Reconvene Regular Meeting, Estimated Time 6:45 p.m.***) 

6. Financial matters

  Approval of Payroll and Payables from November 16, 2021, to December 15, 2021, in the 

  amount of: 

Payables – $ 133,417.99 

Payroll –  $   41,727.52 

Total –           $ 175,145.51 

7. Board action and/or discussion

a) Receive and discuss request from customer D. Hill regarding the Meiners Rd. tank location. (D.
Hill) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Receive information and provide direction to staff.

b) Approve Resolution 20211221: AB 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a State of
Emergency, subsequent to Resolution 20211116. (Ward) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve Resolution 20211221: AB 361.

c) Review revised Ordinance: Director Compensation, for public hearing notice to publish on
12/24/2021 and 12/31/2021. (Etchart/Ward) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Review and provide direction to staff on draft Ordinance, staff to publish
in accordance with Water Code regulations for public comment for hearing scheduled on
1/18/22.

d) Discuss and approve future District financial auditing standards to be followed per District
auditor’s recommendations. (Ward/Martinez) – Attachment
Recommended Action: Approve method for future financial audits and provide direction to staff.

8. General Manager’s Report
The Board will receive an update from the General Manager on District Operations and
Maintenance. 

9. Board Secretary’s Report
The Board will receive an update from the Board Secretary on District Administrative and
related matters. 

10. Board Committee Reports

• Executive Committee

• UVRGA

• Allocation Program Committee

• Budget/Rate Committee

• Emergency Management Committee

Page 2 of 35



Agenda, Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2021 

• Staff Procedures Ad-hoc Committee

• New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee

11. Old Business

• State Water
• Matilija Dam Removal Update
• Nitrate Removal – CA Wildlife Conservation Grant

12. Director Announcements/Reports

13. Adjournment The next scheduled Regular Board meeting is January 18, 2022.

Page 3 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

1 of 9 

Regular Meeting Meiners Oaks Water District 

November 16, 2021 202 W. El Roblar Drive 

6:00 pm Ojai, CA 93023-2211 

Minutes 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by the Board President, Mike Etchart, at 6:02 pm via
teleconference.

2. Roll Call

Present: Board President, Mike Etchart, Board Directors: James Kentosh, Diana Engle,
Christian Oakland, and Loni Anderson. Staff Present: General Manager, Justin Martinez,
and Board Secretary, Summer Ward. Attorney Present: Stuart Nielson, Jeanne Zolezzi,
and Greg Jones (closed session only).

Absent: None.

3. Approval of the Minutes

Approval of October 11, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes

Approval of October 19, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes

Director Engle made the motion to approve October 11, 2021, Special Meeting minutes,
and the October 19, 2021, Regular Meeting minutes. Director Anderson seconded the
motion.

No public comment.

Engle/Anderson

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y  Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

4. Public Comments – None present.

**The Board went into closed session at 6:05 pm**

** J. Zolezzi joined at 6:05 pm ** G. Jones joined at 6:35 pm**

Page 4 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

5. Closed Session: The Board of Directors held a closed session to discuss litigation,
pursuant to the attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code
Sections Ş54957 & 54956.8, 54956.9, and 54957.
• State Case: SBCK v. SWRCB, San Francisco Superior Court, Case # CPF-14-513875
• Meiners Oaks Water District v. Moll, Ostling and Ojai Vista Farms 56-2018-00515474-

CU-OR-VTA/
• Personnel matters

** J. Zolezzi left at 6:28 pm ** G. Jones left at 7:01 pm **

**The Board adjourned closed session at 7:15 pm**

Attorney S. Nielson stated that the Board discussed current ongoing litigation and 
personnel matters in closed session, and no actions were taken. 

6. Financial Matters

Approval of Payroll and Payables from October 16 to November 15, 2021, in the
amount of:

Payables:  $161,117.20 

Payroll:  $  40,926.73 

Total:  $202,043.93 

Director Anderson made the motion to the Payroll and Payables from October 16 to 
November 15, 2021. Director Engle seconded the motion. 

No public comment. 

Anderson/Engle 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart - Y  Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y Anderson - Y 

All Ayes – M/S/C 

7. Board Discussion/Actions
a. Approve Financial Audit FY 2019-2020. (C. Fanning)

Ms. Fanning, CPA, presented the MOWD 2019-2020 Financial Audit, including a review
of the financial statements, audit findings, management letter, and required
supplemental information. Ms. Fanning noted that the financial statements were
comparable to the previous year, with no new disclosures. Footnote contingencies
described unknown future economic impact of COVID-19 on the District.
The Board engaged with Ms. Fanning regarding recommended practices, including
policies and procedures, internal controls, allowance for doubtful debts, and summary of
unadjusted errors.

Page 5 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

Ms. Fanning stated there were no deficiencies or issues of non-compliance. 

No Public Comment. 
No Motion. 

b. Approve Resolution 20211116-1: FY 19-20 Financial Audit (Ward)
Ms. Ward presented Resolution 20211116-1: FY 19-20 Financial Audit to accept the
financial audit presented by Ms. Fanning, CPA.

Director Kentosh made the motion to approve Resolution 20211116-1: FY 19-20
Financial Audit. Director Anderson seconded the motion.

No Public Comment.

Kentosh/Anderson

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y  Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

**Ms. Fanning left the meeting at 8:00 pm.** 

c. Approve Resolution 20211116: AB 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a
State of Emergency, subsequent to Resolution 2021921: AB 361. (Ward)

Ms. Ward presented Resolution 20211116: AB 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings
during a State of Emergency. Ms. Ward stated that this is subsequent to Resolution
20211019, approved in October. The resolution maintains that due to the ongoing
health and safety concerns described in the most recent Ventura County Health order
on September 18, 2021. Therefore, resolution 20211116, if passed, would be in effect
for 30 days, and a subsequent resolution will be presented every 30 days until the
health orders are lifted.

Director Kentosh made the motion to approve Resolution 20211116: AB 361 –Brown
Act: Remote Meetings during a State of Emergency. Director Engle seconded the
motion.

Director Kentosh noted a misnumbering on the resolution heading, Ms. Ward to correct.

No Public Comment.

Page 6 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

Kentosh/Engle 

Roll Call Vote: 

Etchart - Y Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y Anderson - Y 

All Ayes – M/S/C 

d. Discuss and provide direction to Staff on draft Ordinance 21-11-16: Director
Compensation. (Etchart)

Director Etchart presented the draft Ordinance 21-11-16: Director Compensation
(replacing Ordinance 98-10-20). Attorney Nielson stated that the District must publish
the pending approval of the Ordinance in the local paper for two weeks. The Ordinance
can be approved in the public meeting, and then the 60-day public period begins.

Director Anderson requested clarification on whether participation in legal matters would
constitute compensation. Attorney Nielson stated yes, it could be listed as a separate
line item. Further, any work captured in item 6 of the Board Compensation policy would
require board approval each month.

Staff to work with Attorney Nielson and Director Etchart to revise the draft Ordinance
and begin the process of publishing the public hearing for the Ordinance approval.

No Public Comment.

No Motion.

e. Select contractor and approve expense for Meiners Rd. tank demolition and
removal. (Kentosh/Martinez)

Mr. Martinez presented bids for demolition and removal of the Meiners Rd. tank, with
the goal to complete the project by December 31, 2021. Mr. Martinez recommended
Toro Enterprises at $17,268.

Director Oakland requested clarification on the list of exclusions and whether the scope
of work was provided. Mr. Martinez stated that the exclusions are standard language for
this type of work, and the scope was provided to the contractors in the bid request.

Director Anderson made the motion to select Toro Enterprises up to $17,268 for
demolition and removal of the Meiners Rd. tank. Director Kentosh seconded the motion.

No Public Comment.

Anderson/Kentosh

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

Page 7 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

f. Discuss and consider approval of hiring a temporary Administrative Clerk, job
description with an estimated payroll expense up to $25,000. (Ward)

Ms. Ward presented a request to hire a temporary Administrative Clerk to assist with an
increase in and backlog of administrative work related to regulatory requirements and
current and future projects. The goal would be to have the clerk assist with the daily
tasks to free up the other administrative Staff to focus efforts on more complex tasks
and allow for staff cross-training.

Director Engle asked why request a temporary versus permanent position. Ms. Ward
stated that this would be an ideal way to study the possible need for a permanent
position if the position proves to be efficient and effective.

Director Engle made the motion to approve hiring a temporary Administrative Clerk, the
job description, and payroll expense up to $25,000. Director Anderson seconded the
motion.

No Public Comment.

Engle/Anderson

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

g. Approve draft Fraud Detection & Prevention policy. (Ward/Martinez)
Ms. Ward presented the draft Fraud Detection & Prevention policy in response to the
financial audit recommended actions. The draft policy was reviewed by the District
Auditor, Staff, Director Kentosh, and Attorney Nielson and is reflective of their input. Ms.
Ward added that the Staff’s goal is to review the District policies and procedures,
update as necessary, and post to the District website.

Director Anderson made the motion to approve the Fraud Detection & Prevention policy.
Director Oakland seconded the motion.

No Public Comment.

Anderson/Oakland

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

Page 8 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

h. Discuss and consider approval of the request to release/sell two District vehicles.
(Martinez)
Mr. Martinez shared that the District was made aware by the CHP that per the slow-
moving vehicle code, the District golf carts will no longer be permitted to drive
throughout the District. In addition, the EZ-Go registration officer was renewing tags, but
will no longer be allowed to re-register these vehicles. Additionally, the District’s old
crew truck has been replaced with the truck purchased in 2020. Mr. Martinez has
requested approval to sell one golf cart and the old crew truck through GovDeal,
associated with CSDA. A portion of the auction sales goes back to CSDA. GovDeals
currently works with 115 special districts in California. The funds received would be
allocated toward the AMI meter exchange program.

Director Engle made the motion to approve the sale of the two District vehicles. Director
Anderson seconded the motion.

No Public Comment.

Engle/Anderson

Roll Call Vote:

Etchart - Y Engle- Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson - Y

All Ayes – M/S/C

i. Discuss alternative filtration options for the replacement treatment plant.
(Kentosh)
Director Kentosh discussed the alternative filtration process for the replacement
treatment plant, specifically stainless cartridge filters. The cost of replacing the cartridge
filters is estimated at $60,000 per year. Overall, the cost of the alternative filtration
process would be too expensive. Director Kentosh, based on his findings, recommends
the District go back to the original plan to design a filtration plant based on EPD
pressure filters. The RFP will be sent out at the end of November.

No Public Comment.
No Motion.

j. Discuss Redemption Church will-serve letter request, provide direction to the
Allocation Committee. (Engle/Kentosh)
Directors Engle and Kentosh provided background on the parcel and active water
account, currently without a dwelling, only animals. The church would like to relocate
the animals and build a primary dwelling with an ADU for church staff housing. Director
Engle provided that the current allocation for that parcel is enough to supply a house
and ADU, with minimal remaining variable allocation for outside irrigation. This request
has come to the Board due to its unique nature. The District has not been presented
with a case where a customer with an existing meter and allocation has asked for new

Page 9 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

construction of both a primary dwelling and an ADU at the same time. The Board needs 
to have a consensus on the formula for debiting the current variable allocation (286 
HCF/yr) by an amount to cover both dwellings. For example, current variable 286 
HCF/yr – 140 HCF/yr (principal dwelling) – 100 HCF/yr (ADU) = 46 HCF/yr remaining. 
The Board agreed that California is facing an acute housing shortage and supports the 
calculation of the fixed and variable allocation. The Board provided direction to Staff to 
issue a will-serve letter to Redemption Church based on the existing allocation. 

No Public Comment. 
No Motion. 

k. Review Board Committee membership, discuss and approve any membership
changes. (Etchart)
Director Etchart presented the 2021 Board Committee Membership roster for review;
consider changing some membership to include the newest Director. The Board
discussed the following revisions: add staff procedure functions to the Executive
Committee, remove “Drought” from Allocation Committee, New Meters & Expansion of
Services membership will include Kentosh and Anderson, Emergency Management &
Safety membership will include Oakland and Anderson, Grants Committee membership
will include Etchart and Anderson, Ventura River Watershed Council representatives will
include Martinez and Anderson. Ms. Ward to update the Board Committee Membership
listing.

No Public Comment.
No Motion.

8. General Manager’s Report

Mr. Martinez reported that the Casitas Lake level is at 32.8%. The District is currently on 
Casitas water, demand has slowed, and the lower connection was turned off 
10/28/2021. Mr. Martinez has continued working with Patrick at the Division of Drinking 
Water on the blending pilot project. The over-excavation for the antenna tower footing 
was completed on 11/5/2021. The grant application for source water options is in 
process. The District completed its 3-year Division of Drinking Water on-site inspection 
on 11/1/2021 and is working on recommended actions. Mr. Maxwell returned from 
military leave on 11/8/2021. Mr. Martinez stated that he has started working with Regina 
Hirsch on a potential grant to assist the District with converting to AMI smart meters. 
Transitioning to smart meters would allow customers and the District to have real-time 
eyes on the water, help with leak detection and overall conservation. The estimated cost 
of replacing all District meters with AMI is approximately $400,000. The goal is to start 
with Agriculture, Commercial and high residential users and then phase in 
approximately 5% per year for the remaining residential customers.  

No Public Comment. 

Page 10 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

9. Board Secretary’s Report

Ms. Ward presented the monthly Board Secretary report, highlighting that the District 
received a Public Records Request from VC Reporter on 10/18/2021 requesting 2016 to 
current budgeted and actual attorney expenses, legal cases, District real estate 
holdings, and District wells. The response was provided 10/28/2021 with a follow-up 
request to review deeds in person, to be scheduled. The annual PCI Control 
Assessment for the District’s online bill pay platform was completed on time. CA 
Executive Order N-42-20, the moratorium on water disconnections for non-payment, is 
set to expire 12/31/2021. Ms. Ward noted improvement with the number of customers 
starting to make payment arrangements for arrearages and, in some cases paying off 
full balances. Ms. Ward noted that work on the Allocation Program continues to near 
implementation; DataProse, the bill printing vendor, is working on formatting the data file 
and bill template to capture the new allocation data by customer classification.  

No Public Comment. 

10. Board Committee Reports
• Executive Committee: No update.
• UVRGA: Director Engle reported that the GSA has achieved a milestone and approved

the tentative GSP final draft for a public hearing set for December 9, 2021.
• Allocation Committee: Director Engle reported a productive meeting to review pending

will-serve letters and the creation of a will-serve request template form. The Committee
will begin meeting more frequently to review the will-serve letter and waiver requests.

• Budget/Rate Committee: Pending allocation program implementation.
• Emergency Management Committee: No update.
• Staff Procedures Committee: No update.
• New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee: No update.

11. Old Business
• State Water: Director Kentosh stated that he attended the Casitas Board meeting last

week, and they are still pursuing the Carpinteria connection; the City of Ventura has
given Casitas a decision deadline of 12/31/2021 for the pipeline through Callagus.

• Matilija Dam Removal Update: No update.
• Nitrate Removal: Director Kentosh reported that the MKN draft report should be arriving

soon.

Page 11 of 35



Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 16, 2021 

12. Director Announcements/Reports
• Director Engle: No report.
• Director Oakland: No report.
• Director Kentosh: Will the District have its annual holiday dinner this year?
• Director Anderson: Stated that some ratepayers expressed concerns regarding high

water pressure on the customer side of the meter. Mr. Martinez can discuss with
customers options for protecting property with pressure regulators.

• Director Etchart: Stated he is happy to discuss options for the holiday dinner with Staff.

13. Meeting Adjournment

There being no further business to conduct at this time, Board President Mike Etchart
adjourned the meeting at 9:40 pm.

     ____________________________ _____________________________ 

     Board Secretary    Board President 

Page 12 of 35



Page 13 of 35



Page 14 of 35



Page 15 of 35



Page 16 of 35



Page 17 of 35



Page 18 of 35



$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)
MOWD Monthly Expenses 

Expenses

Capital

Total Expense1/19 - Wells

12/19 - Gen & Panels

7/2020 Z-2 6" relocation

$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)

MOWD Income & Expenses 

Total Expense

Income

Page 19 of 35



Derek Hill 

Friday, December 17, 2021

Subject: Easement considerations at 1923 Meiners Rd.

To the Board members of Meiners Oaks Water Company,

As time has gone by and seeing the new antennae tower erected and with the water 
tank coming down, I would like to make a request to the Board that we have an on-site 
visit at my property, 1923 Meiners Rd, to take into consideration the future of the water 
company’s placement of it’s equipment.  

I understand you all have big priorities to attend to, and I’m not trying to make this a 
priority right now, but I’d like to at least get the conversation started and to see if we can 
start taking actionable steps towards understanding the feasibility of relocating the 
pumps, pipes, and possible future water tank closer to Meiners road on my property.  My 
request to Board Members is that we have an onsite visit at the easement to discuss, as 
photos don’t really do it justice, given the contours of my property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.

The solution I’m seeking to attain would allow a separate access for water company 
maintenance trucks much closer to the road that wouldn’t require driving through the 
middle of my property every day, it would also remove the liability and underlying 
uncertainty of a possible pipe burst affecting my personal property, it would also remove 
water company infrastructure from such a highly visible hill top from the whole Meiners 
Oaks valley. I could go on and on how many reasons my family and I would like to work 
out a new solution to the placement of the current infrastructure and believe that we can 
mutually find a solution that works for everyone.  

If we could at least get to an on-site visit with all the pertinent people, I think it would be 
a great first step.  Wishing everyone a happy holiday season!

Very best,

Derek Hill

1923 Meiners Rd, Ojai, CA 93023 
tel: 310.429.3871   derekjhill@mac.com

Page 20 of 35



Page 21 of 35



RESOLUTION NO. 20211221:  

AB 361-Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency (Subsequent) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MEINERS OAKS WATER 
DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION 

OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY CA EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 MARCH 2020, AND RE-
AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES 

OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD DECEMBER 22, 2021 – 
JANUARY 22, 2022 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 

WHEREAS, the MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT is committed to preserving and nurturing 
public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT’s legislative bodies are open 
and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any 
member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct 
their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 
with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 
certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster 
or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 
described in Government Code section 8558; and  

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-caused disasters; and 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, March 4, 2020 CA Governor 
proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat of COVID-19; 
despite sustained efforts the virus continues to spread and is impacting nearly all sectors of 
California; and 

WHEREAS, the Ventura County Public Health Officer issued order October 18, 2021 regarding 
the highly transmissible Delta Variant, recommends vaccinated and unvaccinated persons to 
mask and social distance until health metric criteria are met or rescinded, superseded, or 
amended by the Health Officer; and   

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the ongoing risk posed by the highly 
transmissible COVID-19 virus, will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons 
within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and 

Page 22 of 35



facilities of the District, and desires to proclaim a local emergency and ratify the proclamation of 
state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency, the Board of Directors does hereby find 
that the legislative bodies of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT shall conduct their meetings 
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as 
authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall comply 
with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   

WHEREAS, all meeting agendas, meeting dates, times and manner in which the public may 
attend the meeting and offer public comment by call-in option or internet-based service option, 
are posted at a minimum, on the District website and physically outside the District Office.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 
this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Proclamation of Local Emergency. The Board hereby proclaims that a local 
emergency now exists throughout the District, and the ongoing risk posed by the highly 
transmissible COVID-19 virus, and, Ventura County Public Health orders for social distancing 
has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the 
District. 

Section 3. Re-Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 
hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, 
effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager, Board Secretary and 
legislative bodies of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT are hereby authorized and directed to 
take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, 
conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) 
and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of January 22, 2022, or such time the Board of 
Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 
54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of MEINERS OAKS WATER 
DISTRICT may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT, 
this 21 day of DECEMBER, 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Page 23 of 35



1 

Ordinance 22-01-18: Director Compensation 
(Replacing Ordinance 98-10-20) 

AN ORDINANCE TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
AMENDING DIRECTOR COMPENSATION  

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Water Code (“Water Code”) Section 20201, the governing board of a 
water district may, by ordinance adopted pursuant to Division 10, Chapter 2 of the Water Code and in accordance 
with Water Code Section 20202, increase the compensation received by members of the governing board for each 
day’s attendance at meetings of the board, or for each day’s service rendered as a member of the board by request 
of the board; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 20202, in any such ordinance increasing the amount of 
compensation which may be received by members of the governing board of a water district, the increase may not 
exceed an amount equal to five percent (5%) for each calendar year since the effective date of the last increase; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 20202, any such ordinance may authorize compensation for 
a total of up to ten (10) days in any calendar month; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 98-10-20 adopted by the Board of Directors (“Board”) of 
Meiners Oaks Water District (“MOWD”) following a public hearing held on October 20, 1998, the Board last 
adjusted the amount of compensation authorized to be paid to the members of the Board to the amount of $150.00 
for each full meeting of the Board and $50.00 for each committee meeting, for up to three (3) meetings in any 
calendar month; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to establish the amount of compensation by way of this Ordinance in 
accordance with the provisions of the Water Code; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Water Code Section 20203 and Section 6066 of the California Government 
Code, a public hearing was held on January 18, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., or soon thereafter, and a notice of said hearing 
was duly published in Ojai Valley News, a newspaper of general circulation, once a week for two weeks as follows: 
on December 24, 2021 and December 31, 2021; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1  The amount of compensation to be received by the members of the Board for each day’s 
attendance at meetings of the Board and for each day’s service rendered by a member of the Board by request of 
the Board shall be in the amount of two hundred fifty dollars ($250). Said increase does not exceed an amount equal 
to five percent (5%) for each calendar year since the date of the last adjustment.  The categories of meetings, 
services, events, and other types of occasions that constitute the performance of official duties and for which said 

Page 24 of 35



2 

compensation shall be paid shall be those specified in the Board Compensation Policy (“Policy”) set forth in Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 2  In accordance with Section 20202 of the California Water Code, no member of the Board 
shall receive the compensation set forth in Section 1 of this Ordinance for more than ten (10) days in any calendar 
month.  

Section 3  All ordinances, resolutions, or administrative actions by the Board, or parts thereof, that 
are inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby superseded only to the extent of such inconsistency. 

Section 4  The President of the Board shall sign this Ordinance and the Secretary of the Board shall 
attest thereto, and pursuant to Section 20204 of the California Water Code, this Ordinance shall take effect sixty 
(60) days from the date of adoption.

Section 5  If any section, subsection, clause or phrase in this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, 
the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. The Board hereby declares that it would 
have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact 
that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases or the application thereof be held invalid.  

Section 6 The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made an operative part of this 
Ordinance. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _____________, 2022, by the following vote: 

Ayes: _________________________________________ 
Noes: _________________________________________ 
Absent: _________________________________________ 

__________________________________ 
Mike Etchart, President 
Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Summer Ward, Board Secretary  

Page 25 of 35



EXHIBIT A 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD COMPENSATION POLICY 

General 

Directors receive $250 per day (“daily meeting stipend”) for each day’s attendance at meetings, as defined in this 
policy.  Such compensation is in addition to any reimbursement for meals, lodging, travel and expenses consistent 
with District policy.  

Meetings And Service Subject To Daily Meeting Stipend  

To be entitled to a daily meeting stipend under this policy, the event in question must constitute one of the following: 

1. A meeting of the Board within the meaning of Government Code section 54952.2(a);

2. A meeting of a District committee within the meaning of Government Code section 54952(b);

3. An advisory body meeting within the meaning of Government Code section 54952(b);

4. A conference, organized educational activity, or similar gathering conducted in compliance with
Government Code section 54952.2(c), including ethics training required by Government Code Section 53234 et 
seq.;  

5. A meeting of any multi-jurisdictional governmental body on which the Director serves as the
District’s designated representative; 

6. The participation by a Board member in legal, administrative, or other official proceedings on behalf
of the District; and 

7. Any meeting attended or service provided on a given day which the Board determines constitutes the
performance of official duties and for which the Board provides approval of payment of a daily meeting stipend, 
including, without limitation, attendance at member agency meetings and/or workshops, participation in District 
staff interviews and/or termination meetings, and production of technical/expert level work of at least two (2) or 
more hours. 

Aggregate Limits 

The number of days for which a Director receives a daily meeting stipend will not exceed the aggregate limits 
established by state law and District policy. Said District policy provides that compensation shall not exceed ten 
(10) meetings/days per month.

Page 26 of 35



202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

Financial Auditing Standards 

Meiners Oaks Water has been notified by its financial auditor, Fanning & Karrh, that there have been 
some updates to auditing requirements that require the District to decide how it will proceed with 
future financial audits. Government Auditing Standards has independence requirements that Fanning & 
Karrh, CPAs do not feel they can adhere to under the existing circumstances.  The performance of the 
audit in addition to the preparation of financial statements and preparation of adjusting journal entries 
present threats to independence. MOWD is not required to follow the Government Auditing Standards, 
but rather the generally accepted auditing standards in the US and State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. As a reference VRWD is not subject to government auditing 
standards, but rather, follows the generally accepted auditing standards in the US and the State 
Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. 

Items to consider: 

• Does MOWD want to follow the Government Auditing Standards (not required)?
• If yes, the District has two options:

o Engage a larger CPA firm, that has the ability to assign multiple CPAs to the District, to
separate duties; or

o Continue with Fanning & Karrh and engage a separate CPA firm to prepare the financial
statements and auditing adjustments.

• If no, the District can continue with Fanning & Karrh for annual financial audits and preparation
of financial statements.

Page 27 of 35

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


November 2021 

District Summary/Update 

• Casitas Lake Level: 32.7% 12/17/2021
• Purchased Water: The demand on our system has slowed down and the south casitas connection has been turned off as of 10/28/2021. MOWD has

 continued limited blending with Casitas one day per week. 
• Meiners Rd Tank: Antenna Tower Project ( Complete)
• Source Water Options: Grant application (In Process)
• Tank Farm: Tanks have been inspected by CSI (Report In Progress)
• Vehicles: Golf Cart and Old Crew Truck are listed on GovDeals auction platform ending 12-29-2021

o Antenna tower footing complete
o Antenna tower conduit installed
o Service leak/meter relocation
o Antenna tower installation
o Tank Inspection
o Tower communication complete
o Continue limited blending of Wells 4 & 7 with Casitas
o 3 Yr. DDW Inspection; Corrections
o Dig Alerts and Service Orders

• Wells:  Wells 1, 2, are all off-line and the system is being supplied by Casitas with supplemental water from MOWDs well 4 & 7.
• Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI): Grant Application (In Process)
• Grant Funding: Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill
• 28 Day Rain Fall Totals:  Casitas Dam      4.52”

    Matilija Canyon   6.18” 
    Stewart Canyon  3.33” 
    Last Chance       4.56” 

• Staff: Closed Session

Page 28 of 35



November 2021 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Work 
Type of Repair Cause Date Location Contractor Amount $ 

Pour Footing Antenna 
Tower 

11-22-2021 Meiners Rd Toro $7,039.00 

Install Counduit Antenna 
tower 

11-29-2021 Meiners Rd DTL $680.00 

Leak/Meter 
Relocation 

Age 12/1/2021 156 S Poli Staff N/A 

Install Antenna 
Tower 

12/8/2021 Meiners Rd T&T 
Crane/Staff 

$660.00 

Tank Inspection Every 3/5 yrs 18/8-12/9 Tank Farm CSI Proposed 
$7,950 

Relocate 
Communications 

New Tower 12/10 Meiners Rd Cricket 
Consulting/Staff 

$1,738.57 

Blending MOWD 
& CMWD 

Well 4&7 
Casitas 

11-23-2021
11-29-2021
12-14-2021

Staff N/A 

Well Drilled Dates & Depths 
Well Date Drilled Drill Depth 

Well #1 1969 65’   (Rehab 2018) 
Well #2 1969 110’ (Rehab 2018) 
Well #4 1969 240’ (Non-Op) 
Well #4 (New) 2018 165’ 
Well #7 1961 156’ 
Well #8 1968 144’ (Non-Op) 

Page 29 of 35



November 2021 

Current Well Levels and Specific Capacity 

WELL #1 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) OFF OFF 31.52 27 34.74 36.1 39.2 31.5 35.35 35.3 32.5 34.4 

RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF 41 43.24 38.3 40.95 31.75 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) 7.7 OFF OFF 14 8.5 2.2 1.75 .25 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 191 187 105 104 97 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) 13.0 OFF OFF 13.86 22 47.73 59.42 ERROR OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #2 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 35.5 28.9 31.23 37 37.4 37 40.95 32.3 34.1 34.4 31.8 33.1 

RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF 49.9 47.4 42.4 44.1 33.1 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF OFF OFF 12.9 10 5.4 3.15 .8 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 126 127 82 59 59 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF OFF OFF 9.84 12.7 15.19 18.73 73.75 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #4 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 48.9 28.9 45.70 47.9 52.40 57.6 67.3 70.3 60.8 61.7 62 55.8 

RUNNING (ft) 97.0 76.8 77.35 80.3 79.90 81.7 80.4 85.55 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) 48.1 35.9 31.65 32.4 27.5 24.1 13.1 15.25 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) 375 388 375 390 197 178 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) 7.3 10.1 11.84 11.98 13.63 16.18 15.03 11.67 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #7 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) 53.9 46.9 50.60 54 54.70 60.3 70.2 72.9 63.3 63.7 64.65 58.4 

RUNNING (ft) 62.7 50.1 53.15 58 60.40 64.1 73.5 77.2 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) 8.8 3.2 2.55 4 5.7 3.8 3.3 4.3 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) 292 337 278 280 172 167 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) 32.9 92.5 114.51 84.25 48.77 73.8 52.12 38.83 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

WELL #8 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
STATIC (ft) OFF OFF OFF 67.6 65.7 68.3 72.6 71 73 74.05 71.5 66.25 

RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Page 30 of 35



November 2021 

Water Pumped, Sold, Purchased & Water Sales 
MONTH PUMPED (AF) SOLD (AF) PURCHASED (AF) WATER SALES 

($) 
JAN 0 40.35 40.35 $55,869.54 
FEB 59.13 43.26 0 $45,273.85 

MAR 45.88 37.35 0 $38,245.86 
APR 54.26 52.05 0        $52,993.98 
MAY 55.31 53.77 0 $50,789.57 
JUN 68.5 68.23 0 $69,254.64 
JUL 74.30 66.27 1.46 $78,149.92 

AUG 46.76 72.24 13.2 $73,260.72 
SEP 0.00 66.49 66.49 $79,486.92 
OCT 3.14 56.89 53.75 $56,983.68 
NOV 2.21 45.07 48.80 $43,449.12 
DEC 

TOTAL 2021 231.42 427.92 224.05 $600,308.68 
TOTAL 2020 485.71 635.47 197.26 $657,912.06 

Reserve Funds 
* Balance at the County of Ventura  $ 1,317,026.94     

Total Taxes     $ 5210.07 

Total Interest from reserve account#        $ 0.00 

Fiscal Year Total Revenues 
July 1st – November 30 st   2020     $ 610,925.53 

July 1st – November 30 st   2021     $ 613,482.51 

Page 31 of 35



November 2021 

Bank Balances 
* LAIF Balance           $ 230,058.96 
Transferred from L.A.I.F. to General       $ 0.00 
(#) Quarterly Interest from LAIF        $0.00 

* Money Market (Mechanics Bank)   $ 7,622.72 

Amount Transferred to Mechanics from County this month         $0.00 
Amount Transferred to General Fund from Money Market        $ 0.00 
Monthly Interest received from Money Market     $ .13 

General Fund Balance     $ 123,215.28 

Trust Fund Balance    $ 7,684.04 

* Capital Improvement Fund  $ 14,081.67 

 (#) Quarterly Interest from Capital Account                $ .12 

 Total Interest accrued  $ 00.25 

Page 32 of 35



November 2021 

Capital Improvement Projects for 2021-2022 
Budgeted capital funds $ 724,000.00 FY 2021-2022 

1. Well 8 Nitrate Feasability Study (In Progress)
2. Engineer design report for the treatment plant (100% In Process)
3. Valve Replacements
4. El Sol and Lomita Tie-in (Engineerin,TBD)
5. Tank Cleaning and Inspection (Complete)
6. Remove Meiners Rd Tank & Antenna Tower Install (In Proress)
7. Chlorine Gas Alarms at well sites
8. Install CL17 at Wells 4 & 7
9. Crane for New Service Truck (Complete)
10. Air Compressor
11. Service Truck Generator
12. Service Truck Welder
13. Service Truck Tool (Complete)
14. Leak Detector/Sounder
15. Appropriations and Contingencies

Page 33 of 35



Board Secretary Report – December 2021 

December 2021 

1. Administrative
• Temporary Administrative Clerk recruitment in process.
• CA Executive Orders N-42-20 moratorium on customer disconnections for non-payment

extended to December 31, 2021.
• Direct Deposit is available to all Directors, contact Brandi for details.
• Public Records Request from UC Berkeley/SPUR regarding customer water shut-offs after

March 4, 2020 received 12/17/2021.
2. Financial (any items not covered in separate Financials Report)

a. Audit for FY 20-21 – Pending
b. Accounts Receivable – Customer account balance aging during COVID-19 moratorium on

disconnections due to non-payment. This past month customer contact and payment
arrangements have stalled, individual letters are being mailed to account holders with
arrearages. No flow restrictors have been implemented at this time. The CA Executive Order
42-20 is set to expire on 12/31/2021. Customers’ full balances will be due after 12/31/2021, or
they can contact the office to setup a 12-month payment plan per Gov. Code §60372(2). After
EO 42-20 expires, the “new” 4/1/2020 SB 998 timeline for disconnects for non-payment (>$200
@ 60 days) will go into effect.

Class #Customers 
(>$200 bal & 

>60 days)

Balances 
$ >2 mo 

Notes 

Residential 29 $12,519  10 RES accounts have not made a payment in the past 
4 months. 

Commercial 0 $0 

Agriculture 2 $2,485 (1) Last pmt  7/2021 of $400
(2) Last pmt 9/2021 of $775

3. Projects
a. Allocation Program: (1) Dataprose bill printing vendor completed the reformatting of the

data file extract and bill printing templates; (2) Customer letters to Commercial &
Agriculture accounts were mailed out with program updates and reminders. (3)
Commercial & Ag customers prorated annual allocations have been updated in the
billing system. (4) New allocations will appear on the December 31 bill statements.

b. District job description and salary table review and updates.
c. Policy & Procedure review and web posting.

Page 34 of 35



Board Secretary Report – December 2021 

4. Billing/Customer Service
a. Summary of Billing Statements & Customer Service Orders
b. Casitas Connection turned on 7/27/2021.

Month #Total 
Service 
Orders 

# Account 
Owner 

Changes 

Monthly 
Customer Bill 

Total 

Monthly 
Casitas 

Surcharge 

Over-
Allocation 

 $ (drought) 

Other 
Conservation 

Penalties 
Jan 20 88 5 $103,517.04 $0 $3,060.00 $0 
Feb 20 75 11 $102,457.21 $0 $1,919.00 $0 
Mar 20 109 11 $104,012.24 $0 $1,849.00 $0 
Apr 20 78 9 $ 94,817.80 $0 $1,106.00 $0 
May 20 112 2 $124,586.74 $0 $5,220.00 $0 
Jun 20 201 7 $144,471.57 $0 $9,483.00 $0 
Jul 20 246 27 $144,736.42 $0 $8,937.00 $0 
Aug 20 147 18 $148,635.97 $0 $10,417.00 $0 
Sep 20 210 18 $164,667.04 $0 $14,472.00 $0 
Oct 20 93 12 $172,773.27 $23,868.19 $9,958.00 $0 
Nov 20 79 7 $172,514.41 $37,554.48 $6,779.00 $0 
Dec 20 74 5 $130,327.05 $0 $5,631.00 $0 
Jan 21 89 12 $115,479.25 $0 $2,730.00 $0 
Feb 21 75 13 $108,605.39 $0 $2,460.00 $0 
Mar 21 73 16 $108,985.68 $0 $1,936.00 $0 
Apr 21 125 9 $127,363.90 $0 $5,084.00 $0 
May 21 134 11 $129,394.85 $0 $5,525.00 $0 
Jun 21 72 20 $147,682.37 $0 $9,566.00 $0 
Jul 21 139 8 $145,721.09 $0 $8,865.00 $0 
Aug 21 151 13 $153,370.61 $0 $10,660.00 $0 
Sep 21 116 10 $174,988.52 $29,089.01 $8,742.00 $0 
Oct 21 93 17 $163,260.86 $31,512.78 $6,206.00 $0 
Nov 21 52 15 $141,776.01 $25,886.00 $3,094.00 $0 
Note: May 2020 over-allocation fees increase attributed to very high Ag consumption, (1) account over 500 units, and 
(2) accounts both over 850 units each. These reads were verified, and meters did not indicate leaks. Jun-Aug meter
readings indicated significant abnormally high consumption, several customer leaks, and increased irrigation overall.
Aug 2021 70% were due to abnormal consumption during meter reading.

Board of Directors 

 Board Member Position Term Ends Term Type 
Michel Etchart President 2022 Long Term (Re-elected 2018) 

James Kentosh Vice President 2022 Long Term (Re-elected 2018) 
Diana Engle Director 2024 Long Term (Re-elected 2020) 

Christian Oakland Director 2024 Long Term (Elected 2020) 
Loni Anderson Director 2022 Appointed July 2021 

5. Complaints & Compliments

Recommended Actions:  Receive an update from the Board Secretary concerning miscellaneous matters 
and District correspondence. Provide feedback to staff. 

Attachments:  None. 

Page 35 of 35


	MOWD Regular Board Agenda 12212021
	Item 3 11-16-21 Regular Minutes
	Item 6a Expenditures 112021
	Item 6b AP Report 111621-121521
	Item 6c Income 113021
	Item 6d Board Financial Graphs 122021
	Income & Expense Graphs

	Item 7a1 D Hill 1
	Item 7a2 D Hill 2
	Item 7b Resolution 20211221 AB361- Brown Act Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency (Subsequent)
	Item 7c Director Compensation Ordinance 22-01-18
	Item 7d Financial Auditing Standards
	Item 8 November 2021 G.M. Report
	Item 9 Board Secretary Report December 2021



